Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Gary Marson, Democratic Services Team Leader
Tel: 0208 547 5021/email: gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk
Published on 12 November 2018

Community Engagement Committee
Date:

Tuesday 20 November 2018

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

The Guildhall, Kingston Upon Thames

Members of the Committee
Councillors Jon Tolley (Chair), Liz Green (Vice Chair), Olivia Boult, Kevin Davis,
Lorraine Dunstone, Mark Durrant, Ian George, Dennis Goodship, Caroline Kerr,
Katrina Lidbetter and John Sweeney

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR
code with your smartphone.

2

AGENDA
1.

Public Questions

A period of up to 30 minutes for public questions on matters relevant to the Committee’s
remit which are not related to items featuring on the agenda. Advance notice of questions
is preferred but not essential.
2.

Apologies for Absence and Attendance of Substitute Members

3.
Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other non
pecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on the agenda
4.

Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 19 September 2018.
5.

Digital Strategy

Appendix A

To approve for publication the updated Digital Strategy.
TO
FOLLOW
To enable the Committee to give consideration to the community engagement aspects of
the review of the Council’s Neighbourhoods Committees.

6.

Neighbourhoods Review

7.

Community Engagement - Financial Challenges and Council
Priorities

Appendix B

To set out proposals for engagement with the community in relation to setting the
Council’s priorities - to be articulated through a new Corporate Plan for publication in the
New Year - and its approach to meeting future financial challenges and opportunities.
8.

Mental Health Champion

Appendix C

To note the appointment of Councillor Olivia Boult as the Mental Health Champion for the
Community Engagement Committee.
9.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

To consider any items which, in the view of the Chair, should be dealt with as a matter of
urgency because of special circumstances in accordance with S100B(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972.
10.

Exclusion of Press & Public

The following resolution is included if any exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting
for which the Committee wish to resolve to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph

3
*….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)

4

Welcome to this meeting.
Notice of Webcast
This meeting is being filmed for live and subsequent recorded broadcast via the Council's
website. The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes within the
Council. Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, the layout of the room
means that the Council is unable to guarantee a seat/location that is not within the coverage
area (images and sound) of the webcasting equipment.
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or
training purposes.
Information about the Committee
The Committee is made up of your local elected Councillors. As one of five strategic committees
of the Council, it helps to set the overall direction of the Council.
Public participation during the meeting
Do you want to ask a question?
There is a Question Time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm – 8pm. Questions may be
submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at the start of the meeting on the green
forms provided. (There are some green slips on the chairs and there are more copies.)
Please fill in the relevant part and hand this in to the Committee Officer at the top table.
Where a full reply cannot be given at the meeting, a written reply will be sent to the
questioner, members of the Committee and the local press. The Chair may disallow any
question which, in his/her opinion, is scurrilous, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise
objectionable.
Running order
Are you here for a particular item? Items may be taken in a different order depending on the
interests of the members of the public present at the meeting. Please fill out a green form at
the start of the meeting and hand this to the Committee Officer if you would like to request
that a particular item is heard earlier in the meeting.
Taking part in the meeting
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions, on
items listed on the agenda. To attract the Chair’s attention, please raise your hand.
Speaking at meetings
Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this as
easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take account of people who may have a
speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual requirements
or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a difficulty, please let us know
beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far as reasonably possible.

5

More meeting information
Accessibility






All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are stairs, a
lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (depending
on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).

A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the agenda. Interests may be
personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared, it might be necessary for the
Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in Part 5A of the Constitution Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call In
Most of the decisions made at the Committee, except on decisions on planning applications/
planning enforcement/tree preservation orders and any licensing applications, can be called in for
review by a minimum of 100 people who live, work or study in the Borough or 9 Councillors. A
Decision Notice will be published on the Council’s website soon after the meeting with details of
the decisions and the call in period expires 10 working days after the meeting. Decisions are not,
therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are not going to be called in.
The call in means the decision will be reviewed by a meeting of the Council’s Scrutiny Panel. The
Panel at this meeting cannot change the original decision. It may decide that no further action is
necessary, in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer the issue back to the
decision making Committee (or, exceptionally, to a meeting of the Full Council) with its views and
a request that the decision is reconsidered taking account of these views.
Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

Community Engagement Committee

A1

Appendix A

20 November 2018
Digital Strategy
Report by Assistant Director, Digital & ICT
Call-in deadline 5pm on 4 November 2018

Purpose
To approve for publication the updated Digital Strategy for Royal Borough of Kingston
Upon Thames.
Recommendation of the Portfolio Holder for Community Engagement
To Resolve that the Digital Strategy be approved as the Council’s main strategy to
deliver improvements for the residents and businesses of, and visitors to the borough,
through the use of digital and smart place technology, and improved use of data.

Benefits to the Community
There are a number of key deliverables for the next twelve months that will ensure we
deliver this strategy, including those that have been recently completed or are underway,
that will:
○
Improve access to services through redesigned services
○
Improve the customer experience
○
Improve decision making process through better management and visibility
of data
○
Enabling cost reduction and better use of resources.

Key Points
A.

The Digital Strategy sets out the council’s vision, approach and themes for ensuring
it transforms the relationship between residents and the borough, making local
government as easy to deal with as the very best digitally enabled services.

B.

The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and the London Borough of Sutton
have worked together to develop a single Digital Strategy to ensure that we are able
to maximise our approach to obtain benefits to residents, business and
communities.

C.

The Council will do this by redesigning services so that they meet the needs of
residents and businesses seamlessly, through unlocking the power of data, bringing
together work done across the council, and ensuring the underlying processes,
governance, data, infrastructure and technology are fit-for purpose.

D.

It sets out the principles for how we will create a platform for transformation across
Kingston using digital technology, smart city infrastructure and data, introducing
innovation while building upon existing success.

E.

The plan sets out the key high-level activities for the next three years, to be
reviewed annually, to deliver this strategy including those that are underway.

A2
The Digital Strategy enables the delivery of the Customer Access Strategy.

F.

Proposal and Options
2.

It is proposed that the Digital Strategy attached at Annex 1 be approved as the
council’s main strategy to deliver improvements for the residents and businesses
of, and visitors to the borough through the use of digital and smart place
technology, and improved use of data. Following Committee approval, the
Strategy will be published and promoted.

3.

This joint strategy builds upon the work already completed through the original
RBK Digital Strategy.

4.

The strategy is also going through the Sutton committee approval process, so will
be subject to amendment. Any changes to be agreed by both Portfolio holders
for Kingston and Sutton.

5.

The strategy will be edited further to improve the layout and aesthetics before
final publication.

Engagement
6.

Feedback from residents has been gained through service redesign processes to
ensure that the council can determine the areas of need and priority. We have
undertaken redesign work in Registration Services, Highways and through the
Connected Kingston project, and have engaged with people by undertaking
interviews and surveys. Projects will continue to operate in this manner.

7.

The Council is working with local community groups, businesses, Kingston First,
Kingston Voluntary Action, and the University to shape the outcomes of the
Enabling Communities element of the strategy. External input into shaping the
outcomes and co-designing the solutions through workshop sessions, interviews
and discussions means we design better solutions.

8.

There has also been engagement with Councillors, staff, business areas and
governance arrangements through the Digital Leaders’ Network chaired by
Director, Communities. The Digital Leaders’ Network is a cross-council group
identifying and delivering digital transformation and the Digital Strategy across
the organisation.

Timescale
9.

This strategy sets out the principles for realising the benefits offered by digital
and data technology and innovation over the next three years. On approval by
this
committee, it will set the guiding principles for digital and smart place innovation
in RBK.

10.

There are a number of activities across the council already in progress to deliver
the existing strategy, which will continue to support the delivery of the updated
version.

11.

Key deliverables over the next 12 months include:
Enabling Workforce

Enabling Customer

Enabling Community

Team of Digital
Ambassadors working

Customer Platform and
redesigned website -

Establish ‘Internet of
Things’ network pilot

A3

across the council to
continue to support staff
to embed digital change
focusing on collaboration
with Google

supporting the Customer
Access Strategy,
delivering the ability for
our customers to Book it,
Pay for it, Apply for it enable better online
experience for residents

which will provide the
infrastructure to deploy
sensors in the Borough
to measure and monitor
air quality, traffic flows,
flooding, footfall, etc.

Pilot Robotic Processes
Automation - to undertake
a pilot to improve
efficiency, focusing on
council tax and employee
starter and leaver
processes

Open data and
transparency developing our open
data portal to allow
residents to access data
in relation to health,
education, environment,
council spending,
contracts

Improve internet
connectivity to encourage
faster connections, more
free wi-fi and growth into
the borough and
superfast broadband into
social housing

Continue to embed Better
Working principles by
providing the technology
and office environment to
enable staff can work
more flexibly and agile

Innovative technology to
help older people to live
independently longer

Develop smart place
challenge approach to
help vulnerable people to
travel independently and
to address domestic
abuse

Upgrade Google to
enable staff to maximise
collaboration

Digital Service Design
and Transformation
across the council,
putting customers at the
heart to improve their
experience across all
services

Develop smarter place
approach to help improve
people’s awareness of air
quality and the
environment

Resource Implications
12.

There are no direct budgetary or resource implications arising from the specific
recommendation of the report as the recommendation is to accept the Digital
Strategy. Cost and resource implications have been considered in the budget
setting process.

13.

Any specific projects or initiatives will undertake a business case and follow the
council’s project and budgetary processes.

14.

The council has an existing capital programme of work which this strategy will
further guide, funding has been set aside through the Technology Investment
Fund.

15.

Digital Service Design will be contributing to the Digital Transformation savings
targets through the Medium Term Financial Strategy and No Stone Unturned
programme.

A4

Legal Implications
16.

Any legal implications will be addressed by the initiatives and projects that may
follow on from this strategy.

Risk Assessment
17.

As this is a recommendation to accept a strategy paper, there is no
accompanying risk assessment. All initiatives and projects proposed, following on
from this strategy, will carry a full risk assessment.

Equalities Impact Assessment
18.

The council has undertaken an EQIA for the existing Digital Strategy and is in the
process of refreshing it for the updated strategy.

Health Implications
19.

As this is a recommendation to accept a strategy paper, there are no health
implications at this time. Any such implications will be addressed by the initiatives
and projects that may follow on from this strategy.

Road Network Implications
20.

As this is a recommendation to accept a strategy paper, there are no road
network implications at this time. Any such implications will be addressed by the
initiatives and projects that may follow on from this strategy.

21.

The Digital Strategy could enable improved monitoring of traffic through the use
of Smart Place technology.

Environmental & Air Quality Implications
22.

As this is a recommendation to accept a strategy paper, there are no direct
environmental implications at this time. Any such implications will be addressed
by the initiatives and projects that may follow on from this strategy.

23.

The Digital Strategy will enable improved environmental monitoring through the
use of Smart Place technology, and this will in turn enable improved
engagement with residents on air quality.

Background papers
.
o None
Author of report - Mark Lumley, Assistant Director, Digital & IT mark.lumley@kingston.gov.uk

2018-2021

A5

Our Digital
Strategy
DRAFT

1

1.0 - Foreword
2.0 - Our Digital Vision
3.0 - Realising the Vision

CONTENTS

4.0 - Benefits
5.0 - Approach

7.0 - Priority Areas - Digital Themes
8.0 - Conclusion

A6

5.0 - Our Digital Journey

1.0 Foreword
This Digital Strategy sets out the shared vision of the London Borough of Sutton and the Royal Borough of Kingston
upon Thames outlining how we will use technology to help us realise our ambitions for the borough. It explores the
opportunities presented by the adoption of new technologies in order to improve the lives of the people that live and
work here as well as businesses and visitors.

An increasing number of places are turning to “smarter” approaches in planning their future, in creating a modern
infrastructure and in delivering services. We are playing an important role in shaping thinking in how innovation can be
harnessed to improve our boroughs. The councils are committed to adopting such “smart city” approaches to cope
with the many challenges ahead and to create new opportunities for business and local communities.
We have spoken to residents, businesses, partners, experts, voluntary sector to gather views from the tech sector,
universities, councils, and community groups.
This strategy sets out how the councils visions have evolved, and underpins and complements the council’s existing
strategies and vision.

Cllr Sunita Gordon ,
London Borough of Sutton

Cllr Jon Tolley,
3
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames

A7

There are a number of pressures on Local Government including demographic change, the rising cost of services and to
deliver services with significantly reduced budgets, and higher resident expectations. Whilst the Boroughs have high
levels of connectivity and digital skills we recognise that not everyone has, so we will ensure we continue to offer
phone and face to face to ensure we are inclusive.

2.0 Our Digital Vision and what it means
Our Vision
To engage and empower stakeholders to help provide
the services they need through the use of future
technologies, making it easier and improving lives.
Improving the Borough through better connectivity.
Our vision is informed by the following principles:

Shape demand -redirect resources to where

A8

●

they are most needed
●

Engage with communities and businesses –
using digital platforms

●

Resilience -delivering fit for purpose
infrastructure for the future

●
●

VFM- delivering cost effective services
Inclusive (Digital) -included in everything we
do

●
●

Citizen focused - rather than service focus
Enable self service
4

We will realise our vision by:

3.0 Realising the Vision...

A9

Enabled Workforce
Using data and technology to
enable workforce to be more
agile, flexible and more
productive through improved
processes and online services,
improve efficiencies and reduce
cost

Enabled Customers
Using data and technology to
fundamentally redesign and deliver a
service in a different way. Change the
way we connect and communicate
with residents to understand their
needs and ambitions.

Enabled Communities
Using data and technology to enable
a Smart Cities approach to
encourage growth, automation and
monitoring that work beyond
organisational boundaries.

We have also incorporated our work with leading digital colleagues in other London boroughs, both formally through the
South London Partnership, Greater London Authority and Government Digital Service to generate opportunities in
innovation, data, technology and infrastructure aligned to the Government's digital agenda.
5

4.0 Benefits
Realising our plan will improve our processes and systems to reduce costs
Reducing our costs will help us realise the priorities, actions and activities of
our overall ambitions

A10

Our Digital Strategy will help support and deliver the borough’s
vision to be a Smart Place, enabling the delivery of a number of
benefits to customers and our borough as a place

6

4.0 Benefits to our Customers ...
Better use of information & digital technologies our stakeholders will benefit in a number of ways:
Improved outcomes by redesigning our services with our customers needs in mind:
○ Increased online payments, bookings, reporting and applying
○ Increased self-serve and improved websites including navigation and content
○ Increased collaboration between the councils and their communities via increasing our
communication channels and becoming data-led organisations

●

Greater use of open data across all areas of the Council, which will
mean we are more transparent and allowing us to work closer external
providers to improve services.

●

Drive out inefficiencies through increased automation in our routine and
transactional activity, allowing staff to focus on actions and providing better
outcomes and operating in more agile way.

●

Centralised records of our customers, allowing a single view of data enabling us to
simplify and reduce interactions between customers and different council departments.
This will provide a foundation for the council’s longer term ambition of providing a ‘one touch’
agent with other agencies i.e. the ability to hold a central record of the customer
accessed by a number of agencies.

A11

●

7

4.0 Benefits to our Boroughs
A borough that is better connected through a public network, allowing inter-connectivity between business,
public body organisations, customers, increasing collaboration and attracting more business, creating job
opportunities

Improved flows and interactions between the borough’s public bodies, will
facilitate the smart and strategic use of information and data in order to
develop services that are responsive to the social and economic needs
of communities.

8

A12

Our Smart City strategy is aimed at being a collaborative, connected and responsive borough. Our plan is to use
digital technologies and uses city-wide data to respond to our citizens’ needs. We have already started identifying
the challenges we face in the borough and will improve outcomes for local residents, partners and businesses
such as health/well-being, energy, connectivity, transportation, utilities and others.

As we move towards delivering digital services, we need to
redesign how services are delivered from the customer’s
perspective; to become a truly digital council rather than an
online simulation of existing manual processes.

5.0 Approach ...

A13

An example, the creation of an online form to trigger a call back
from council, is different from providing a truly digital service. In
a truly digital service, the submission of the form would
automatically trigger the appropriate action, required to fulfil
the customer’s request.
We are currently undergoing a full assessment of our ways of
working, the back office systems and how information is
managed.
Many of the services we provide are physical activities such as
recycling collections or care for vulnerable adults. These may
not be digital products but the processes that enable a resident
to receive these services can become digital to the fullest
extent. These can include online booking of appointments,
digital payments, online application forms and access to
customer profile information.

9

5.0 Approach ...
We will enable the “digital by design” approach by:

Ensuring that we review all services
from a customer journey viewpoint to
ensure true Digital Transformation
puting users at the heart of the process

Reviewing website content, using web
analytics and statistics to constantly
improve the information. We will
prioritise the most popular transactions
- allowing customers to intuitively find
what they need on the website
A14

Diverting calls away from the
contact centre and face-to-face
interactions at the Service Points
with ease of use for digital services,
saving money, time and officer
expertise through the
implementation of the Customer
Access Strategy

Providing our customers with a
choice to transact online using a
personalised account

Making services accessible online 24
hours a day on any device including
smartphones, tablets etc, so that
applications and payments can be
made at any time, anywhere, in a
way that meet the demands of our
customers

This is keeping pace with other modern businesses and institutions therefore
aligned with our customers’ expectations of access to public services and products,
whilst always being inclusive.

10

6.0 Our Digital Journey
We have already delivered a number of key digital outcomes:
● Digital Strategy approved by Council Members (Kingston, Nov 16. Sutton, July 2017)
Updated Website enabling more online transactions and improved SOCITM rating

●

Initiated a new Smart Cities project designed to identify the challenges we face in both councils. We are
currently trialling three innovative solutions to improve outcomes for local residents, partners and businesses

●

We have undertaken a review of the current digital infrastructure which has helped to shape our thinking in
improving connectivity, realising an inclusive broadband provision and enabling a Town Centre Wi-Fi solution
across all main centres in the borough. This will improve digital connectivity and outcomes for current and
future residents, businesses and visitors

●

We are in the process of replacing our existing Customer Contact platform with a new Digital Customer
Platform, which is designed to deliver a variety of services for our residents and local businesses, promoting
self-service and a better customer experience

●

Implemented a corporate digital content platform to improve communication channels across multiple sites

●

Launched a Digital Ambassadors initiative enabling like minded individuals to embed digital change and
increase awareness within service areas, our partners, residents and members

●

Complete Digital modernised Libraries across Kingston and Sutton

●

Codesigned and delivered 'Connected Kingston' a social prescribing website that aims to help residents feel
more involved in their community, meet new people and make some changes to improve their health and
wellbeing

●

Installation of free Wifi in Kingston with Sutton planned as part of the Town Centre masterplan

11

A15

●

To make our residents’ and users’ days better
through delivering great digital solutions.
A16
12

7.0 Priority Areas - Digital Initiatives
Our digital vision will be delivered by a set of digital initiatives guided by our
aforementioned principles.
Our Customers: Residents, businesses and visitors are the ultimate recipients of our services. We will
consult and involve in the design of new and upgraded services.

We are reviewing our services across the Council, identifying opportunities for Digital Transformation ensuring
we prioritise to support the strategy, ensuring they become digitally inclusive to allow our customers and
businesses to interact through the web and increase the ability to self-serve.
What we will do:
We want to develop our workforce to ensure the have the skills to be able to use and be innovative with digital
technologies. Ensure that the communication between the business and IT is clear and consistent in putting the
customer first.
We will communicate and share information regularly, openly and proactively to set expectations with the
initiatives we are working and what outcomes they will deliver.
We will continue to enable and support our Digital Ambassadors across both Council’s to drive the innovation
and change with all employees and partners.

A17

What we have done:
We have developed our processes and culture to meet the differing needs of our clients. In designing new
solutions, we have considered the requirements of all stakeholders, so that the principle of a single ‘Digital
Platform’ can be delivered. Our staff will have a client and customer focus in all their work.

Innovation & Technology:
We will become a leader in digital thinking across all areas of the councils, and increase the digital capabilities
of staff right across the businesses. Teams will extend across colleagues and partners to create and support
new Digital services together
What we have done:
Prioritised and consolidated projects into a single digital programme that is required to deliver the principles of
the Digital Strategy and preparing for transformational change in the future

What we will do:
We will investigate the migration of our on-site data centres to the Cloud to ensure that we are able to be take
advantage of the flexibility and resiliency that that offers and free the Councils from being tied to specific
buildings.
Availability and resilience become key as we provide more services digitally, adopt flexible working practices,
integrate data with our partners, and create a smart city environment. We will provide 24*7 availability and fit
for purpose support for our services
We will ensure that our applications are modern and fit for purpose, cloud based where security allows and
reliable, commissioning following a Digital Design review to ensure we meet the Customer Journey

A18

We are committing to invest further in the development of the staff in the Digital & IT service and across the
Council, not only in the important technical skills that need to be kept up to date, but in the wider set of
commercial and contractual competencies that are required to perform a technical leadership role

Engagement
A joined-up set of systems that are designed to work efficiently together is a key goal. We will put in place new
cross-cutting IT governance arrangements to ensure that systems and resources are deployed and
implemented in a consistent and intelligent way
What we have done:
We have performed a review of the portfolio and identify the common applications of greatest value that can be
shared and standardised across the service

We are using the Government Digital Service, digital design principles, that put the customer at the heart of
service design and have engaged customers though work including: Registration Services, Public Health, visitors
to Council buildings
What we will do:
We will ensure that we embed customer engagement and customer feedback into all areas of the Council’s
Digital work, we will consult and engage for all major change work across the Councils
The efficiency, scope and influence of the Digital & IT Shared Service will continue to be developed, as well as
members and senior officers to ensure it aligns closely with the ambitions of the councils and their partners
Training is easily accessible across the borough, and is delivering the skills and confidence which people need
both to transact digitally, and to work. We will continue the Digital Ambassador scheme across the Councils to
ensure our staff and partners have the required digital skills

A19

We have established a Digital Design Authority function that becomes an integral part of the overall IT
Governance processes, acting as the Technical Design Authority (TDA) for the authorities and owning the
Enterprise Architecture

Partnerships
Our Digital & IT Shared Service will continue to develop partnerships through closer collaboration with existing
and new partners in the public, private and third sectors
What we have done:
The emerging London Office of Technology and Innovation (LOTI) is intended to drive and share good practice
across the city, led by the Mayor’s office. We have joined this development and to align our own IT and digital
developments with the other participating boroughs.

A20

We are managing our suppliers and develop stronger links between our organisations to our mutual benefit. In
particular, we will aim to to share much more closely in suppliers’ new digital innovations as soon as they emerge,
continuously innovating technology with suppliers to deliver improved outcomes.
Continue to work with partners within the South London Partnership to maximise the use of data and systems for
the benefit of the area.

What we will do:
Work with partners to create a connected community, with faster broadband, wifi, mobile coverage, shared
infrastructure. Close working with our partners, businesses, university and residents to understand local needs and
challenges, and to help us identify/develop innovative solutions.
We will create and drive forward work focussed on joint working with health and the third sector, liaising with
colleagues in other agencies to develop both short-term and longer-term solutions that will support and enable this
way of working.

Data & Information
Information is the councils’ most valuable asset. We aim to organise it reliably, accessible and securely so that
it can be exploited to improve decisions and to drive innovation and automation.
What we have done:
We have implemented an integrated and coordinated approach to Information Management that is aimed at
enabling the organisations to exploit their information and knowledge to better achieve their objectives. By
managing information as an asset, maintaining it regularly and to agreed quality standards, we will be able to
improve the value that the organisations can get from their information resources, leading to well-informed
decisions and actions through good data, reporting and dashboards.

We will be more open and transparent with data across the Council, developing our open data portal to allow
residents to access data in relation to information including: health, education, environment, council spending,
and contracts.
We shall develop close relationships with counterparts in partner organisations such as the NHS and the third
sector to agree common shared collaboration tools and practices based on industry standards.
We will recognise investments in open data, open standards, and open software as an investment in the public
good by enabling code and tools to benefit the wider community. We will share data by default to encourage
open innovation and published APIs will be required of our suppliers.
We will develop the skills required to ensure that we are getting the best value from our data and enable us to

A21

What we will do:
We will implement suitable systems, processes, interfaces and platforms to enable the councils to manage and
publish their information easily and effectively.

A Digital Platform

A22

We will create a Digital Platform, hosted in the ‘cloud’ and running the latest applications in a reliable, flexible and
resilient way. The platform is software that underpins all future council services, and will provide clarity,
responsiveness, consistency and security for our customers.
What we have done:
We are ensuring strong governance of of our shared platform for the benefit of all clients, with common clear and
consistent policies and processes making life easier for all. We are sharing network capacity for the benefit of all
clients, reducing costs significantly compared with dedicated links.
What we will do:
We will deliver a Customer platform that will enable customers to book, pay, report and apply for services, quickly
and easily at times that suit them. Enable customers to have a better end to end journey, track progress and enable
the Council to communicate easier.
We will ensure the highest standards of security while creating a flexible, efficient open platform that will reduce
overall costs for the boroughs and their partners. We will build once and reuse where we can across our
environment.
We will work to establish an ‘Internet of Things’ network and review use cases for service delivery including:
parking/transport; street lighting; creation of new data; security; independent living; independent travel; supporting
economic growth and business retention.

We will complete our adoption of Google G-Suite and continue to reap the flexibility and collaboration benefits of the
applications. We will operate as Google First in our approach and push to increasingly integrate the suite with our
line-of-business systems.
As services are increasingly delivered securely but more cheaply and conveniently in the ‘cloud’, we will grasp those

8.0 Conclusion ...

We are excited about the opportunity to set out the
challenges and Initiatives for a new Digital Strategy
across Sutton and Kingston.

A23

As leaders and advocates in the delivery of digital
government, we believe that our learning and insights
can help transform government, build long term
foundations, unlock growth and help lives everyday.
We have a responsibility to our residents and local
communities to play an important role in the delivery
of digital government.

Cllr Sunita Gordon ,
London Borough of Sutton

Cllr Jon Tolley,
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames

19

Community Engagement Committee

B1

Appendix B

20 November 2018
Community Engagement - Financial Challenges and Council priorities
Report by Director, Communities
Call-in deadline 5pm on 4th December 2018

Purpose
To set out proposals for engagement with the community in relation to setting the
Council’s priorities - to be articulated through a new Corporate Plan for publication in the
New Year - and its approach to meeting future financial challenges and opportunities.
Recommendations
The Committee is asked to discuss and note the proposals for a series of community
engagement events as outlined in this report.
Benefits to the Community:
Provides opportunities for the community to be informed about the financial context and
to be involved in shaping the Council’s priorities for 2019 and beyond, which will be
included in the new Corporate Plan for publication in the New Year.

Key Points
A.

To hold up to four community engagement and consultation events, in order to: 1)
Begin a conversation with residents as the Council develops its strategic priorities
for inclusion in a new Corporate Plan; and 2) to seek resident views on how the
Council should approach the financial challenges it faces over the medium-term as
well as the opportunities.

B.

The aim of the events is to raise awareness of the financial position and seek views
from residents to input into the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2019 - 2023.

C.

An online consultation exercise will also take place to supplement the face to face
events.

Context
National picture
The global downturn a decade ago led to the Government imposing the biggest spending
reductions the public sector has ever seen. The 2010 Spending Review passed down cuts
over a four year period totalling £81 billion as the Government at the time attempted to
close a UK structural budget deficit of £150 billion. This austerity drive has continued ever
since.
Local Government has been hit hard with additional burdens and significant cuts have
been made to the welfare budget, which accounts for around half of the Government's
c£650 billion annual spending. Political ring fences have been placed around health,

B2
education, defence and international aid budgets, which increases the scale of the cuts to
other parts of UK public spending as the room to manoeuvre is limited. Local Government
falls squarely in the 'unprotected' pot, which is why the scale of spending reductions has
been so great over the past eight years.

2. Current picture in Kingston
● The borough received £18.6m of Revenue Support Grant from Government in 2015
and no longer receives any.
● Over the last four years we have saved £57m, but need to go further to meet the
challenges ahead.
● Need to save £22m this year. And estimated £16.9m from the annual budget by
2021/22
● We have a growing population in Kingston, which has increased by 20,000 since
2011 and is now at 179,600
● The elderly population (65+) has grown from 20,500 in 2011 to 24,300 in 2018 and
is projected to reach 32,000 by 2030.
● Increases in both the volume and complexity of demand for support across a range
of frontline services placing pressures on social care and special educational needs
and disability services as a result of growing numbers of children in need and our
ageing population.
● Over the next four years it is estimated that costs for adult social care services will
be over £7m more than we currently spend.
Proposal and Options
1.

To hold up to four community engagement events in December 2018 and
January 2019 to begin a conversation with residents as the Council approaches
the financial challenges ahead and sets its strategic priorities via a new
Corporate Plan to be published in the New Year.

2.

The aim of the events is to raise awareness of the financial position and to seek
resident views on how the Council should approach the financial challenges it
faces over the medium-term as well as the opportunities.

3.

Up to four events - one in each Neighbourhood area - will be held between early
December 2018 and the end January 2019. Possible event timings: week
morning 10am-12pm, evening 7pm-9pm or 11am-1pm on Saturday.

4.

The agenda would include an introduction from the Leader of the Council to
outline the budget situation, interactive quick poll type questions. Discussions at
tables on key questions, for example; How can the community and council work
together to improve services whilst reducing council spend ? What do you think
are the priorities for the council? Which services are most valued/could be
reduced ? and an open question and answer session to a panel of cllrs and
officers.

5.

An online engagement exercise will run alongside the events using the same
questions to allow those who can’t make the events to still get involved and have
their say. This can be done using a number of tools including brainstorms, quick
polls, forums and surveys. The online portal can start before the first event and
can be left open after the events finished to capture as much feedback as
possible.

B3
A commitment to building on this approach in the coming years and learning from
this and recent events.

6.

Resource Implications
There is small budget for these events limited to the cost of marketing events, hiring
venues, equipment and providing light refreshments
● The events will be arranged and delivered using existing internal resources
●

Background papers None
Author of the Report; Paula Tribe, Corporate Head, Strategy & Engagement, email
paula.tribe@kingston.gov.uk

Community Engagement Committee

C1

Appendix C

20 November 2018
Mental Health Champion
Report by the Director of Public Health
Call-in deadline 5pm on 4 December 2018

Purpose
To note the appointment of Councillor Olivia Boult as the Mental Health Champion for the
Community Engagement Committee.
Recommendations
To Resolve that -

1. the process agreed at the Health and Wellbeing Board on 13 September 2018 for

the Council to take the steps necessary to sign up to the Prevention Concordat for
Better Mental Health Programme (including an update of the mental health Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment), be noted; and
2. The appointment of Councillor Olivia Boult as the mental health champion for this

Committee be noted and for the Committee to support them in their role.
Benefits to the community
The work of the mental health champions will benefit the community by
ensuring that all strategic committees take into account the impact of decisions
on mental health.

Key Points
A.

At the meeting of full Council on 16 October 2018 a Mental Health Champion was
appointed to each of the Council’s strategic committees, to be a leader and
advocate for mental health on behalf of the Council in relation to the work of their
specific Committee and to undertake roles as described in the report to Council .
Councillor Olivia Boult was appointed as the Mental Health Champion for the
Community Engagement Committee.

B.

Mental health Champions will be able to access Public Health England support and
training to help them with this role.

C.

The mental health champions will oversee the implementation of any
recommendations relevant to their committee from the forthcoming Better Mental
Health JSNA, Thrive Kingston and the Health in all policies programme. They will
also ensure all relevant staff are encouraged to undertake Health Impact
Assessment (HIA) training to support effective HIA on policies.

D.

The mental health champions will keep the committee updated on progress for RBK
to take the steps necessary to sign up to the Prevention Concordat for Better
Mental Health Programme including an update of the mental health JSNA.

Context
1.

C2

The Mental Health Champions
The administration set out its aim to “weave a mental health friendly ethos into all
policies and services and appoint a Mental Health Champion Councillor”. More
than 100 local authorities having a recognised council member whose role is to
advocate for mental health and champion the cause in their community. Member
champions across England are now advocating for mental health in council
policies and strategies, building partnerships with health services, schools and
businesses, and working with their communities to help to combat stigma and
improve understanding. Public Health England offers advice, information and a
nationwide network to member champions for mental health and their councils in
order to support leadership in local communities for better mental health.

2.

There is growing evidence for the cost effectiveness and return on investment of
specific mental health promotion and prevention interventions. A recent LGA
briefing ‘Mental health: How do you know your council is doing all it can to
improve mental health?’ notes the influence councils have over the following
areas that have a role in promoting good mental health.
•Workplaces that support mental wellbeing – many council have initiatives,
such as awards, that encourage this.
• Schools, colleges and universities running initiatives to support mental
health.
• Asset-based approaches to community development – reducing isolation
and identifying mental health problems early.
• Parks and the natural environment – exercise and green and blue spaces
are associated with mental wellbeing.
• Sports and leisure services such as swimming pools and libraries –
opportunities for exercise and social contacts.
• Good standards of housing.
• Planning the built environment with walkways, cycle-paths and
a community focus.

3.

In the past member champions in Kingston have taken papers to council on
Thrive London, attended training, opened Kingston’s first student mental health
conference and attended mental health events.

4.

The roles of the recently appointed mental health champions will include:
● Being a leader and advocate for mental health on behalf of the council and
specifically for this committee
● To work collaboratively with the mental health champions from other
strategic committees to provide political leadership in all aspects of the
council’s work that impact on mental health, particularly the promotion of
mental health and the prevention of mental illness as describe the chief
medical officer in her 2014 report on mental health Chief medical officer's
report on mental health 2014 and to ensure that our key initiatives on the
Prevention concordat for Better Mental Health (paragraph 6), Thrive Kingston
(paragraph 8), and Time to Change (paragraph 12), are progressed.

C3
● Receive a paper on the mental health JSNA (paragraph 13), and be assured
that relevant recommendations relevant to their committees are
implemented.
● Work with officers who have a role in promoting mental health and
preventing mental illness.
● Ensure that Mental Health First Aid training is promoted to all frontline staff
and councillors involved in the work of this committee to enable them to
support residents experiencing mental distress
● Support the Health in all Policies initiative and ensure that it include mental
health (paragraph 9).
● Ensure all relevant staff are trained to undertake Health impact assessments
(paragraph 10), using the screening tool in annex 1 and that officers are
undertaking Health impact assessments in relevant areas in particular any
key policy and strategy development, committee reports, major
developments or contracts.
● Attend any relevant training provided by Public health England or other
partners supporting member champions.

5.

Likely actions for Community Engagement Committee Mental Health
champion might include promoting local adoption of the London Healthy
Workplace Charter, support local employers to engage with evidence-based
supported employment programmes such as that currently provided by Balance
CIC in Kingston and promoting the adoption of the Time to Change Workplace
pledge. It might also include ensuring that Voluntary Sector Commissioning
reflects best practice to improve mental health for example:
○
Develop local programmes that promote improved mental health literacy and
capacity for self management within communities
○
Promoting an Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) approach to
mental health improvement that enables individuals and communities to be
active participants in planning, prioritising and implementing mental health
improvement actions.
○
Ensure that mental health improvement is viewed and measured as a central
outcome in community investment and regeneration actions.
Key initiative 1: The Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health
Programme

6.

Public Health England launched the Prevention Concordat for Better Mental
Health last year in support of the ‘Five Year Forward View for Mental Health’.
This programme aims to facilitate local and national action around preventing
mental health problems and promoting good mental health as outlined in the
Prevention Concordat planning resources.

7.

Already a large number of national and local organisations have signed up to the
concordat consensus statement including the Association of Directors of Public
Health UK, the Local Government Association, the Mental Health Commissioners
Network, the National Survivor User Network, and a growing number of local
authorities. To sign up RBK needs to:

C4
1. Have a named mental health champion who is either: an elected member, a
member of the Health and Wellbeing Board, the chief executive (LA or CCG or
both)

2. Confirm that they have:
Completed and published a public mental health Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment (JSNA) in the last 18 months, and have plans to refresh it or to do a
focussed report on one of their priority themes OR
Completed and published a public mental health JSNA in the last 6 months OR
In the absence of a public mental health JSNA, arrangements are in place to
initiate one within 3 months of signing
3. A multi-agency suicide prevention plan in place
4. Indicate plans for evaluation
5. Agree to schedule the public mental health on the agenda of a scrutiny board
in the next 18 months.
6. Sign off by the Health and Wellbeing Board

8.

Key initiative 2: Thrive Kingston
Thrive Kingston: A Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy for the people of
Kingston by the people of Kingston (2017 to 2021) Thrive Kingston includes
recommendation to:
● support the development of mental health friendly communities
● increase the awareness and capability of policy makers, organisations,
groups and providers of services to recognise risks to mental wellbeing and
to respond in a way that reduces risk.
● develop community resilience
● Tackle stigma against mental health

9.

The Health and Wellbeing board will oversee the work of the member mental
health champions in the strategic committees as part of the overall
recommendation in Thrive Kingston to increase the awareness and capability of
policy makers, organisations, groups and providers of services to recognise risks
to mental wellbeing and to respond in a way that reduces risk.

10.

Public health is currently leading work on a ‘Health in all Policies’ approach
(HIAP) which will include mental as well as physical health. A council steering
group including representation from all directorates will oversee this process. In
support of this, the Health Implications section of this report provides an
opportunity to review any positive and negative implications of a proposal and
consider ways to mitigate these. The Health impact assessment screening tool in
Annex 1 provides a useful way for these to be considered. A brief training
session provided by a member of the public health team will enable this to be
undertaken more effectively.

11.

Key initiative 3: Time to change
Time to Change (TTC) is the national campaign working to change the way we
all think and act about mental health problems Time to Change. Kingston has
recently become a TTC hub which means that we are working with the national

C5
campaign to support Kingston communities, workplaces and schools to help end
the negative attitudes and behaviours towards people experiencing mental health
problems where they live. We aim to encourage as many local business to sign
up to the TTC workplace pledge as possible and would like RBK to take a lead in
this area . KIngston CCG has already signed up as have Kingston hospital.

12.

Key Initiative 4: The mental health JSNA
Achieving better mental health across a local area requires an understanding of
good health outcomes within and between population groups; the factors that
create and protect health; and an understanding of mental health problems and
risk factors and the lived experience of the local population. ‘The better mental
health: JSNA toolkit’ links mental health data, policy and knowledge to help
planners understand needs within the local population and assess local services.
Kingston’s most recent mental health JSNA was completed as part of the annual
public health report in 2014 This needs to be updated using the better mental
health.

Timescale
13.

Not applicable to the specific recommendations of the report.

Resource Implications
14.

Kingston Council receives a ring-fenced grant for the delivery of the Public Health
service, which includes provision for a mental health programme. The
implementation of the recommendations in this report can be met from the Public
Health grant and no additional resources are required.

Legal Implications
15.

None arising from the specific recommendations of the report.

Risk Assessment
16.

Not applicable

Equalities Impact Assessment
17.

Equality principles are embedded within this area to ensure that work continues
towards eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity and
fostering good relations. This area of work falls within the protected
characteristics of disability and specifically relating to mental health and the work
undertaken will have a positive impact within the structures

Health Implications
18.

Improving the health, including the mental health, of Kingston residents is central
to the report

Environmental, Air Quality and Road Network Implications
19.

None arising from the specific recommendations of the report.

C6

Background papers held by the author of report -  Liz Trayhorn, Public health lead for
mental health, Healthy and Safe Kingston, Communities Directorate. 020 8547 6120.
liz.trayhorn@kingston.gov.uk :
● Thrive Kingston: A Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy for the people of Kingston
by the people of Kingston (2017 to 2021) and action plan
● Better Mental Health for All: a public health approach to mental health improvement,
by The Faculty of Public Health and the Mental Health Foundation. This report
supports promoting mental wellbeing and the primary prevention of mental illness.

C7

Annex 1: Health (including mental health) impact assessment screening toolkit
Section 1

Use the following questions to identify whether your policy, programme or project is
likely to have an impact on the following things that can affect health and wellbeing.

Tick box
Socio economic
environment
Income
Education
Employment
Community safety
Social contacts
Recreation
Other
Physical
environment
Natural
environment
Housing conditions
Transport
Safety
Other
Lifestyle
Diet
Alcohol
Drug misuse
Tobacco use
Gambling

+

–

?

Comments or action
points

C8

Physical Activity
Safer sex
Other
Mental health
Enhancing control
Reducing anxiety
Facilitating
participation and/ or
enabling people to
undertake valued
roles
Promoting Inclusion
Section 2

Identify whether your policy, programme or project is likely to have a disproportionate
impact on the following groups.
Which population
groups could be
affected by this
proposal?
Children (0-4)
Children (5 – 12)
Young people (13-16)
Young people (17-25)
Pregnant women
New Mothers
Teenage parents
People affected by
divorce
People who are
unemployed
People on a low income
People who are homeless
People with mental health
problems

+ -

?

Comments or action points

C9

People with alcohol
problems
People with chronic
illness
People with physical
disabilities/illness
Older people
People from Specific
ethnic groups (please
state)
……………………………
Refugees and Asylum
Seekers
Those in specific
geographical locations
Other
Employees
People experiencing
bereavement
People living in poverty
Carers
People with learning
disabilities
People with drug
problems
People who experience
abuse of any kind
Gay men, lesbians,
bisexual people
People who experience
domestic violence
Other please state
Section 3
Summarise your findings so far by answering the questions below.

C10

Favouring
further
appraisal

Question

Not favouring
further
appraisal

Yes/
Don't
know

For some of the determinants of health, are
some of the effects of the policy unknown?

No

Yes/
Don't
know

Does the policy, programme or project have
any serious or complex negative effects
through any of the determinants of health?

No

Yes/
Don't
know

Are the potential negative health and
wellbeing impacts likely to be
disproportionately greater for vulnerable,
marginalised or disadvantaged groups in the
population?

No

Yes/
Don't
know

Do you have an opportunity to influence or
reverse the proposal?

No

Yes/
Don't
know

Do you need to understand more about the
potential impacts on health of your proposal
to be confident of going ahead with the
proposal?

No

Yes

Are there community concerns about
potential health and wellbeing impacts?

No

After answering these questions choose from the following options
Recommendations (delete 1, 2 or 3)
1. The proposal will have an overall positive impact on health and wellbeing and
should be implemented unchanged
2. The proposal should be amended to include the following action to minimise the
potential negative, and maximise the potential positive, impacts on health and
wellbeing identified:
...........................................................................................................................................
.....................................................................................................................................
.....................................................................................................................................
.....................................................................................................................................
.....................................................................................................................................
....3. Further research should be undertaken to assess the impacts on health and
wellbeing of the proposal.

